
 
 

Agenda 

 
 

Standards Committee 
 
 

Date: Monday 21 October 2019 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Place: Plowman Room - Oxford Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact the Committee 
Services Officer:  

Catherine Phythian, Committee and Member Services Officer 

Telephone: 01865 252402 

Email: cphythian@oxford.gov.uk 
 
 

 
If you intend to record the meeting, it would be helpful if you speak to the 
Committee Services Officer before the start of the meeting. 



 
 

 

Standards Committee 
 
Membership 
Chair*  Councillor Shaista Aziz  

 
Vice-Chair* Councillor Susanna Pressel  

 
Members 
(with 
substitutes) 

Councillor Michael Gotch  

 Councillor Pat Kennedy  

 Councillor Ben Lloyd-Shogbesan  

 Councillor Sian Taylor  

 Councillor Christine Simm  

 

The full membership is seven councillors and the quorum for this meeting is three members.   

Substitute members are permitted and are shown above where notification of apologies and 
substitutes were received before the agenda was published. Apologies and substitutions sent 
after publication will be reported at the meeting.  

*Substitutes for the Chair and Vice-chair do not take on these roles. 
 

Co-opted members (no voting rights): 

Parish Council representative Cllr Dorian Hancock 
 

Other attendees (advisory role, no voting rights): 

Independent Persons Chris Ballinger Godfrey Cole 
 Jill McCleery  
   
 

Copies of this agenda 

 
Reference copies are available to consult in the Town Hall Reception. Agendas are published 6 
working days before the meeting and the draft minutes a few days after. 

 

All agendas, reports and minutes are available online and can be: 

- viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- downloaded from our website 

- viewed using the computers in the Customer Services, St Aldate’s, or 

- subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

 
 

https://www.oxford.gov.uk/info/20169/council_meetings
http://mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk/ielogon.aspx?lp=1&RPID=2852798&HPID=2852798&Forms=1&META=mgSubscribeLogon


 
 

AGENDA 
 

  Pages 

1   Apologies for Absence  

2   Declarations of Interest  

3   Code of Conduct: summary of complaints and individual 
dispensations - 31 May 2019 until 30 September 2019 

1 - 6 

 Purpose of report:  

To advise the Committee of: 

1. the number of complaints received under the Members’ Code of 
Conduct which have been, or are to be, considered by the Head of 
Law and Governance (in her statutory capacity as the authority’s 
Monitoring Officer) and the Independent Persons. The report also 
notes the outcome, where complaints have been concluded; and 

2. the number of dispensations to an individual member, granted under 
Section 33 of the 2011 Localism Act, by the Monitoring Officer, 
following consultation with an Independent Person. 

 
Recommendation:  

That the Standards Committee notes the content of the report and the 
learning point identified. 
 

 

4   Review of Member training in Quarter 2 2019/20 7 - 14 

 Purpose of report:  

To review the programme of training delivered to members in Q2 2019/20. 
 
Recommendations:  

That the Standards Committee resolves to:  
1. Note the review of the programme of training delivered to members in 

Q2 2019/20. 
 

 

5   Member training - Agreement of principles for the 2020-24 
member training scheme 

15 - 20 

 Purpose of report:  

To seek agreement of the principles for the new member development and 
training scheme for the municipal years 2020-24. 
 
Recommendations: 

That the Standards Committee resolves to:  

 



 
 

1. Comment on the proposals and respond to the questions posed in 
this report. 

 

6   Dates of future meetings  

 The Committee is scheduled to meet at 6.00pm on the following dates: 

 2 December 2019 

 2 March 2020 
 
 
 

 

7   Minutes of the previous meeting  

 Recommendation:  

to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 24 June 2019 as a true and 
accurate record. 
 

 

 



 

 
 

 
Councillors declaring interests  

General duty 

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item 
on the agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your 
election expenses); contracts; land in the Council’s area; licenses for land in the Council’s 
area; corporate tenancies; and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each 
councillor’s Register of Interests which is publicly available on the Council’s website. 

Declaring an interest 

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, 
you must declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as 
the existence of the interest. 

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you 
must not participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting 
whilst the matter is discussed. 

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of 
Conduct says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never 
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that 
“you must not place yourself in situations where your honesty and integrity may be 
questioned”.  What this means is that the matter of interests must be viewed within the 
context of the Code as a whole and regard should continue to be paid to the perception of 
the public. 

 

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but 
also those member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they were 
civil partners. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

. 

 

To: Standards Committee 

Date: 21 October 2019 

Report of: Monitoring Officer  

Title of Report:  Code of Conduct: summary of complaints and 
individual dispensations – 31 May 2019 until 30 
September 2019 

 

Summary and recommendations 

Purpose of report: To advise the Committee of: 

1. The number and status of complaints received 
under the Members’ Code of Conduct which have 
been, or are to be, considered by the Head of Law 
and Governance (in her statutory capacity as the 
authority’s Monitoring Officer) in consultation 
with the Independent Persons.  

2. The number of dispensations to an individual 
member, granted under Section 33 of the 2011 
Localism Act, by the Monitoring Officer, following 
consultation with an Independent Person. 

Key decision: No 

Recommendation:  

That the Standards Committee notes the content of the report and the 
learning point identified. 

 

Introduction and background  

1. In compliance with legislation relating to the standards and conduct of elected 
councillors, the Council has in place complaints handling arrangements to 
enable an individual to make a formal complaint that an elected or co-opted 
member of the City Council, or of a Parish Council within the City Council’s 
area, has failed to comply with the authority’s Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

2. The Standards Committee is responsible for promoting high standards of 
ethical behaviour by developing, maintaining and monitoring the Members’ 
Code of Conduct.  This report from the Monitoring Officer which identifies any 
issues or learning points arising from the complaints received contributes to that 
monitoring process.  

 

1

Agenda Item 3



 

 

3. The key stages of the complaints handling arrangements can be summarised 
as: 

Initial tests The Monitoring Officer will apply the following “initial tests” 
to the complaint: 

 It is a complaint against one or more named 
councillors of Oxford City Council or a Parish Council 
within the city boundaries;  

 The named councillor was in office at the time of the 
alleged conduct and the Code of Conduct was in force 
at the time;  

 The complaint, if proven, would be a breach of the 
Code under which the councillor was operating at the 
time of the alleged misconduct. 

Assessment  The complaint will be assessed and a decision made by 
the Council’s Monitoring Officer in consultation with an 
Independent Person as to the next steps.  At this stage the 
options open to the Monitoring Officer are:   

 No further action  

 Informal resolution brokered by the Monitoring Officer 
and/or Group Leader  

 Referred for investigation  

 Referred to the police or other regulatory agency 

Investigation A formal investigation may be conducted by an officer from 
Oxford City Council, an officer from another local authority 
or an independent investigator. 

The investigating officer will review the complaint and 
supporting evidence and may interview some or all of the 
people concerned. 

The investigating officer will then produce a draft report. 
The complainant and the subject councillor concerned will 
normally have an opportunity to comment on the draft 
report.  The investigating officer will then submit the report 
to the Monitoring Officer.   

Local Hearing The Monitoring Officer will consider the findings of the 
investigation and, in consultation with the Independent 
Person(s), determine what action to take.  At this stage the 
options open to the Monitoring Officer are:   

 Local Hearing – complaint to be determined by the 
Standards Committee; 

 Local Resolution - a fair resolution of the complaint 
which is acceptable to all parties brokered by the 
Monitoring Officer; or 

 No action - complaint dismissed  

 

  

2



 

 

Complaints made against members of Oxford City Council or a Parish 
Council 

4. In the period 31 May 2019 up to and including 30 September 2019 the 
Monitoring Officer dealt with the following complaint:  

Ref Date City/Parish Code – alleged breach in  behaviour 

15202 May 2019 Oxford City Objectivity 
Respect for Others 
Impartiality 

 
5. The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person(s), 

considered the complaints and made the following decision in relation to 
Complaint (ref: 15202): 

Action  Reference 

Assessment  City Parish 

 No action No further action should be taken in 
respect of the allegation 

  

 Informal 
resolution 

Referred to the Monitoring Officer 
and/or Group Leader for informal 
resolution 

15202  

 Investigatio
n 

Referred for formal external 
investigation  

  

 Referral Referred to the police or other 
regulatory agency 

  

Local Hearing 

 Local 
Resolution 

A fair resolution of the complaint 
which is acceptable to all parties  

  

 No action Complaint dismissed as no breach 
of the Code of Conduct 

  

 

6. The Complaint (ref: 15202) was made by a member of the public against a 
member of the city council concerning alleged behaviours when canvassing for 
the local elections in March 2019. Those local elections did not relate to Oxford 
City Council.  The Complainant alleged that the Subject Councillor had behaved 
in a hostile and aggressive manner and made offensive remarks. 

 
7. The Subject Councillor confirmed the general subject matter but their 

recollection of the detailed content of the conversation differed significantly from 
that of the Complainant. 

 
8. The complaint was considered by the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with an 

Independent Person, and the Monitoring Officer was satisfied that the Subject 
Councillor was in office at the time of the alleged conduct, that the Code of 
Conduct was in force at the time and that the complaint, if proven, would be a 
breach of the Code under which the Subject Councillor was operating at the 
time of the alleged misconduct. 

 

3



 

 

9. However, there was no public interest in taking the matter further as the 
incident was confined to the conversation between the Complainant and the 
Subject Councillor and the Complainant had indicated that an apology would be 
an acceptable outcome. 

 
10. On that basis the Monitoring Officer decided to seek informal resolution and the 

Subject Councillor although not admitting the words and sentiments attributed 
to them agreed to provide a letter of apology which has been sent to the 
Complainant along with a copy of the Monitoring Officer’s Decision Notice. 

  
11. The Monitoring Officer’s Decision Notice has been placed on the case file and 

also sent to the Subject Councillor.  
 
12. A broader learning point identified in relation to this complaint was that when a 

Councillor is undertaking canvassing on behalf of a political party and refer to 
themselves as a Councillor it is probable that they will have engaged the Code 
of Conduct. 

 
Dispensations granted to an individual Member 

13. The Localism Act 2011 prevents Members from participating in any business of 
the Council where they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) unless they 
have sought a dispensation under Section 33 of the Act.  Applications must be 
made in writing and dispensations may be sought for a period of up to four 
years. 

14. On 1 October 2018 Council granted a general dispensation, to remain in force 
for a period of 4 years (ending on 30 September 2022), to all Oxford City 
Council Members and co-opted Members, to speak and vote where they would 
otherwise have a DPI in the following matters:  

 Determining an allowance (including special responsibility allowances), 
travelling expense, payment or indemnity given to Members 

 Housing: where the Member (or spouse or partner) holds a tenancy or 
lease with the Council as long as the matter does not relate to the 
particular tenancy or lease of the Member (their spouse or partner); 

 Housing Benefit/Universal Credit: where the Councillor (or spouse or 
partner) receives housing benefit; 

 Any Ceremonial Honours given to Members; 

 Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government and 
Finance Act 1992 (or any subsequent legislation); and  

 Setting a Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme or Local scheme for the 
payment of business rates (including eligibility for rebates and reductions) 
for the purposes of the Local Government Finance Act 2012 (or any 
subsequent legislation) 

 

4



 

 

15. In October 2018 Council also delegated the granting of dispensations to an 
individual member under Section 33 of the Localism Act 2011 to the 
Monitoring Officer, following consultation with an Independent Person.  

16. In the period covered by this report there have been no requests for an 
individual dispensation under Section 33 of the Localism Act 2011. 

 
 
Legal implications 

17. The Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to have a Code of Conduct which 
sets out the standards expected of Members whenever they act in their official 
capacity. The Code must also have in place a suitable procedure at a local 
level to investigate and determine allegations against elected Members and 
co-opted Members. The Council is also responsible for having arrangements 
in place to investigate and determine allegations against Parish Councillors. 

 
Financial implications 

18. There is a cost to the authority when a complaint is referred for external 
investigation this is determined by market factors in terms of the availability of 
investigators identified through complaint procurement processes.  

 
Risk management 

19. If the Council fails to adopt and maintain a Code of Conduct and process for 
the investigation of complaints which is fit for purpose, robust and transparent 
then there are risks to the Council’s reputation and also to the integrity of its 
corporate governance and decision-making processes as it will not be 
compliant with legislation. Formal consideration of requests for dispensation 
minimises the risk of the Council not following lawful procedures in respect of 
members’ interests.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report author Catherine Phythian 

Job title Committee and Members Services Officer 

Service area or department Law and Governance 

Telephone  01865 252402   

e-mail  cphythian@oxford.gov.uk  

 

5

mailto:cphythian@oxford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

To: Standards Committee 

Date: 21 October 2019 

Report of: Monitoring Officer  

Title of Report:  Member training 2019/20 – Q2 review 

 

Summary and recommendations 

Purpose of report: To review the programme of training delivered to 
members in Q2 2019/20. 

Recommendations: That the Standards Committee resolves to:  

1.  Note the review of the programme of training delivered to members in 
Q2 2019/20. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 2019/20 training evaluation data 

 

Introduction and background  

1. In November 2018 Council adopted a revised Constitution which included a change 
to broaden the remit of the Standards Committee to enable the committee to 
receive reports from and advise the Monitoring Officer on all aspects of member 
training, not just training on ethical issues.   
 

2. As 2019/20 is a non-election year the current member training programme is based 
on the following principles:  

 

 
 

In non-election years:  

• All members to attend compulsory code of conduct training before 31 
July. 

• All licensing committee members to attend compulsory licensing training 
before 31 July. 

• All members to be invited to attend optional planning seminars during 
the year. 

7

Agenda Item 4



Compulsory training 

 Code of Conduct 

3. All 48 members have attended the compulsory Code of Conduct training sessions.  
The majority of members attended one of the three scheduled sessions and a 
further 2 sessions were arranged for the remaining 10 members: 

6 June 2019  17.30 – 19.00hrs 14  

18 June 2019 17.30 – 19.00hrs 15 

4 July 2019 14.30 – 16.00hrs 9 

10 July 2019 18.30 – 20.00hrs 9 

17 July 2019 1:1 session 1 

 

4. The training sessions were presented by the Monitoring Officer (for the June dates) 
and the Deputy Monitoring Officer (for the July dates). 79% of attendees completed 
an evaluation form and the feedback from each of the sessions was very positive. 
An analysis of the training feedback is set out at Appendix 1.  The positive 
comments seem to reflect the fact that the content and format of the training 
sessions have been refreshed to include new case studies, an interactive quiz and 
allowing more time for discussion. Inevitably the feedback is highly subjective and 
some of the comments, for example around the time available for discussion, are 
diametrically opposed and may reflect differences in members’ learning styles and 
preferences. 

 
Licensing 

5. The sixteen councillors who are members of one or both of the Licensing and 
Gambling Acts Committee and the General Purposes Licensing Committee are 
required to attend a training session before 31 July. Eleven of those councillors 
attended one of the sessions which were held on 14 May 2019 and 8 July 2019 
immediately after the licensing committee meetings.  The remaining 5 members 
were expected to attend a final training session on 18 September; in the event only 
2 members were present.  Until they have completed the training  members  are 
unable to sit on a licensing sub-committee. 

 
Optional training programme 2019-20 

 Unconscious Bias 

6. Two training sessions on Unconscious Bias, facilitated by Inclusive Employers were 
held on 22 May 2019.  Inclusive Employers were recommended by the 
Organisational Development Manager, as they had been engaged previously to 
provide the unconscious bias training for Council line managers and for those 
elected members serving on the Council’s Appointments Committee.   

 
7. Seven members attended these two sessions. Three other councillors had booked 

to attend the sessions but sent apologies on the day. Feedback was generally 
positive and there was recognition that the course had promoted some personal 

8



reflection and “suggestions and practical ways we can improve our decision making 
and remove/mitigate bias”. 

 
8. If these sessions were to be repeated it would be prudent to secure a higher 

attendance rate in order to obtain better value for money. 
 

Planning Viability Assessments 

9. Twenty members attended the training session on Planning Viability Assessments 
held on 16 May 2019. The training was delivered by a consultant, who works 
regularly with the Council’s planning officers on applications for developments 
which require a viability assessment.  The session covered viability in the national 
planning policy context, key features of a development viability assessment and 
site value. 

 
Social Media 

10. Following the introduction of the Social Media Protocol in early 2019 councillors 
were invited to participate in a short questionnaire about their use of social media 
and any related training needs.  The responses are summarised below: 

33 responses 

5 Do not use social media – do not require training 

2 Do not use social media – require training to start  

11 Use social media – do not require training 

15 Use social media – require training  

11. The specified training needs included getting started on social media, building 
engagement and two-way dialogue and guidance on the legalities of using social 
media.   

12. To meet this training need a couple of social media workshop for groups of 5 or 6 
councillors, facilitated by Tom Jennings, Senior Communications Officer, will be 
scheduled over the autumn (dates to be confirmed).    
 

Mental wellbeing 

13. The Member Mental Health Challenge Panel has fed back on the need for mental 
health and wellbeing support to be made available to councillors.  In response, 
councillors have been given access to the Employee Assistance Programme (a 
helpline) and to the corporate Mental Health First Aiders; officers who have 
undertaken a two day training course.  In addition the Scrutiny Committee has 
suggested that training on mental wellbeing should be made available to 
councillors.  Committee and Member Services have canvassed councillors to 
establish the level of interest in this type of training.  Only 2 councillors have 
expressed an interest.  The Organisational Development Team has said that it 
would be possible for those councillors to join one of the staff training sessions 
rather than arrange a bespoke member course for such a small number of 
participants. 

 

9



Individual member attendance at external training courses 2019/20 

14. Committee and Member Services will facilitate individual members attending 
external training courses linked to the reasonable learning and skills of a councillor 
or their special responsibilities, if they have the agreement of their Group Leader. 
To date this year one member has attended the LGiU Seminar: An Introduction to 
Local Government Finance in London.  

 
Briefing sessions 2019-20 

15. Provisional dates for a member briefing session have been scheduled monthly 
throughout 2019-20 and published as part of the annual calendar of meetings. 
Councillors are sent regular invitations and reminders about the different sessions.  
The following sessions have been held or are scheduled for 2019/20: 

2019 Attendees 

Booked Present 

31 January Housing Benefit & Universal 
Credit (repeat session) 

8 9 

26 March Housing & Homelessness 14 10 

3 June Oxford Waterways Project 9 8 

17 June A new approach to managing the 
capital programme 

9 12 

25 June Oxford Living Wage 7 4 

2 July Acting on Climate Change Cancelled – low attendance 

24 Sept Climate Assembly Cancelled – low attendance 

17 Oct Beds in Sheds 3  

14 Nov Housing and Homeless update   

20 Nov Police Commissioner & Chief 
Constable 

  

2020   

18 March Council Tax Reduction Scheme   

 
16. Low attendance has been an issue and so Committee and Member Services 

reserve the right to cancel any briefing session with fewer than 6 confirmed 
attendees.  Although the overall numbers for booking and attendance may be close 
there is not always a direct correlation between those members who book to attend 
a session and those members who turn up on the day. 

 
Legal implications 

17. This report has no direct legal implications for the Council.   
 
Financial implications 

18. This report has no direct financial implications for the Council. The development 
and delivery of specific training courses in future years will require appropriate 
budgetary provision. 

 
Risk management 

19. The provision of appropriate training and development courses for councillors is 
necessary to support good governance and decision making. Failure to do this 
places the Council at risk of reputational damage and legal challenge.  

10



 

Report author Catherine Phythian 

Job title Committee and Member Services  

Service area or department Law and Governance 

Telephone  01865 252402  

e-mail  cphythian@oxford.gov.uk 

 

 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1:  2019/20 training evaluation 

 

Code of Conduct 

The good… 

 The training was interesting and engaging 

 The slides were practical and detailed 

 I thought the presentation was excellent with lots of time to discuss examples 

 It is necessary; we learn more every time 

 Lots of time given to discussion – this often brings out nuances which makes 

us all think more deeply about the issue 

 The multiple choice quiz was excellent 

 Loved the voting buttons 

The bad… 

 Remove the planning stuff which is covered elsewhere 

 Too long – not because issues are unimportant but due to repetition of advice 

 Not much discussion but that’s okay as lots to get through 

 We got bogged down with councillor comments 

 Presentation material not available to read before the training 

Improvements… 

 More on social media 

 More on interactions with officers in front of the public (what is acceptable in 

front of the public) 

 More on moral and ethical behaviours and expectations - less focus on 

financial aspects  

 More time to discuss scenarios in small groups or pairs as this promotes 

greater reflection 

 Offer on line training or from home with test / certificate 

 Have Register of Interest forms available to update at the sessions 

 

Licensing 

The good… 

 The presenters were both very knowledgeable and clear 

 Valuable update on new taxi licensing legislation 

Improvements… 

 More of the basics on the kind of conditions you can impose on premises 

would be useful 

 More training on new legislation 

 More discussion of difficult examples 

 More handouts 

 More examples of cases 

 Hold training before the Committee 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

To: Standards Committee 

Date: 21 October 2019 

Report of: Monitoring Officer  

Title of Report:  Member training - Agreement of principles for the 
2020-24 member training scheme 

 

Summary and recommendations 

Purpose of report: To seek agreement of the principles for the new member 
development and training scheme for the municipal years 
2020-24. 

Recommendations: That the Standards Committee resolves to:  

1.  Comment on the proposals and respond to the questions posed in this 
report. 

 

Appendices 

None  

Introduction and background  

1. The provision of a comprehensive member training programme is a fundamental 
element of good governance. It ensures that all members are properly equipped 
to undertake their duties as councillors and protects the integrity of Council 
decision making by minimising the risk of successful challenge.  

Current arrangements 

2. The current arrangements for member training date from 2014 and were modified 
as part of the annual constitution review in 2016.  

3. All members are required to attend compulsory training each year on the Code of 
Conduct and, for members of licensing committees, licensing; and every two 
years on planning. Every two years following local elections this training has been 
pitched at a basic level and in other years advanced training has been offered. 

4. Developments in the areas of members’ conduct, planning and licensing have 
been routinely picked up and reflected in the compulsory training and also in 
optional seminars offered to members from year to year. One reason the training 
for these regulatory services is compulsory is to ensure that all members are 
apprised of the latest changes.  

15

Agenda Item 5



5. Members who have failed to attend the annual planning or licensing training are 
barred from sitting on those committees or sub-committees and Council has 
collectively agreed that they will forgo part of their future allowance payments. 
This collective agreement was reaffirmed when Council agreed a new Members’ 
Allowances Scheme for 2019-2023 on 28 January 2019. 

6. In addition to compulsory training members are offered a range of skills based 
non-compulsory training during their term of office. In the past this has included 
offers of training on understanding local government finance, how the Council 
works, chairing skills, media, safeguarding, unconscious bias and a range of 
planning issues such as interpreting reports, viability and urban design principles. 
Attendance and take up of non-compulsory training has been variable.  

7. For all training members have been asked to provide feedback which has been 
very useful in informing the focus and delivery of subsequent training. Feedback 
helps officers to conceive the training through the lens of the member and to 
adapt the content to fulfil members’ needs and expectations. 

 
Training and development needs of members 

8. The basic roles and functions of members have changed little since the previous 
training scheme was agreed in 2015 although the nature of the political 
environment that members operate in has evolved, most notably due to the 
increased and widespread use of social media. To assist members in navigating 
this changing environment training has been provided on unconscious bias (May 
2019) and a workshop on social media is scheduled for the autumn. This shift will 
continue to have a bearing on the future training and development needs of 
members to support their work in committee, in their ward and in Council.    

9. The Standards Committee has a role to play in identifying those development 
needs and shaping a member training programme to enable members to meet the 
challenges facing elected representatives in the 2020s.   

10. To achieve this officers supporting the Committee will need to go back to first 
principles to:  

 Identify the required competencies and desirable skills and behaviours to be 
an effective councillor  

 Identify best practice examples of training and development programmes 
from other Local Authorities and from other organisations  

 Canvass views of existing councillors and senior management  

 Commission professional advice where appropriate 

11. Officers will continue to work on these issues and bring a further report to a future 
meeting of the Standards Committee, and ultimately to Council, with a view to 
having an agreed proposal for a Member Development Programme ready for the 
start of the new municipal year. 

12. A key contribution to that Member Development Programme will be to undertake a 
further skills audit of all councillors in the summer of 2020.  This could be done by 
the Council or by the political groups. 

16



Question 1 – Is there an interest in formulating a Member Development 
Programme for the 2020-24 term of office? 

13. The Committee on Standards in Public Life published its report on Local 
Government Ethical Standards in January 2019 and as part of the consideration 
of “Leadership and Culture” it makes the following observation about member 
training:  

The evidence we received suggests that such training, even where offered, may 
not always be taken up by councillors. We therefore suggest that a stronger role 
should be played by political groups and national political parties to ensure that 
councillors attend relevant training on ethical standards where this is offered by 
their local authority.1 

14. There is a role for the members of the Standards Committee in working with their 
political groups to encourage and promote the importance and benefit of all 
training, not just that relating to ethical standards, amongst their colleagues. 

 
Principles for the 2020-24 member training scheme 

15. In 2018 Council reaffirmed its support for Code of Conduct and planning training 
being compulsory for all members and licensing training being compulsory for 
members of licensing committees.   The Monitoring Officer recommends that this 
principle should continue and that, as a minimum, members must attend training 
on regulatory topics immediately after their election or whenever there is a policy 
change or amended legislation.  

16. It is suggested that consideration is given to whether training on further topics 
should be made compulsory.  

17. The Standards Committee has indicated support for safeguarding training to be 
compulsory for all members. The Head of Financial Services has suggested that 
finance training should be compulsory for all members of Council as they have 
responsibility for setting the Council Tax base and the Council’s budget and 
medium term financial plan.     

Question 3 – Is there an appetite for making training on additional topics (e.g. 
finance, safeguarding) compulsory for some or all members? 

Question 4 – are there other topics which should be added to the list of 
compulsory training topics? 

18. Currently compulsory training on Code of Conduct, Licensing and Planning is 
offered to all members, with basic training in election years supplemented by 
advanced training in non-election years. This ensures that all members are 
trained to a basic standard while enabling newly elected members to benefit from 
the experience of longer-serving members at those sessions. Delivering training 
pitched at a basic level to longstanding and experienced members may not have 
the intended effect of engaging councillors positively in the subject matter. 
Consideration could be given to reducing the requirement for long serving 
members to attend basic training, perhaps by limiting this to the year of their re-

                                            
1
 Committee on Standards in Public Life – Local Government Ethical Standards 2019 

17

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF


election only, with supplementary seminars and advanced training offered in other 
years. 

Question 5 – Should compulsory training continue to alternate between basic 
training in election years and advanced training in non-election years for all 
members? Or should compulsory training only apply in the first year of office or 
when required as a result of a change in legislation? 

19. For training to be compulsory there needs to be a sanction. The existing sanctions 
are set in the Constitution (Part 26.2), these are based on a collective agreement 
made by Council and not on legislation. The underlying premise of these 
sanctions is that members who do not attend the training on regulatory matters 
cannot and should not sit on the relevant regulatory committee. 

20. Introducing new voluntary sanctions or adding to the scope of the existing 
sanctions would involve amending the Council’s Members’ Allowances Scheme 
which can only be done following consultation with the Council’s Independent 
Remuneration Panel. For relatively minor changes to the Scheme it is envisaged 
that this consultation could take place virtually. 

21. Traditionally the provision of non-compulsory training has been as a consequence 
of external factors (e.g. safeguarding), to meet an organisational need within the 
council or at the suggestion or request of committees, political groups and 
individual councillors.  

22. The content of the non-compulsory training is often related to personal 
development targets or to meet an individual skills gap.  

23. It is anticipated that this approach will continue and would be informed in part by 
the work on the Member Development Programme mentioned above. 

Question 6 – What are there areas that non-compulsory training might focus on?  

 
Induction for newly elected councillors 

24. Chapter 8 of the Committee on Standards in Public Life report on Local 
Government Ethical Standards discusses “Leadership and Culture” and explores 
the importance of induction training in setting the culture of the council: 

“The expected behaviour of councillors needs to be set out at an early stage in 
induction and training programmes. 

Our evidence from local authorities suggests that induction for councillors at the 
earliest stage is crucial to ensuring high standards of conduct. 

To be successful, induction training should not be dry or compliance-focussed, but 
should set out the rationale for high standards in public life, and should be 
scenario-based so that councillors can engage with concrete examples and see 
the relevance of standards to different areas of activity in which they might be 
involved”.2 

25. The induction sessions for newly elected councillors are compulsory and need to 
take place in the narrow calendar after the local elections and before the Annual 
Council meeting.  Within this narrow time frame the Council aims to offer a choice of 

                                            
2
 Committee on Standards in Public Life – Local Government Ethical Standards 2019 

18

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF


dates and times so that there is no bar to successful candidates who have work or 
caring commitments. 

26. When candidates for the local election submit their nomination forms they are 
asked to “hold” the dates of the induction sessions in the event that they are 
elected. The majority of successful candidates are usually able to attend as 
necessary but inevitably there are a few who are unavailable on the specified 
dates and separate arrangements have to be made.   This is unfortunate as it 
means that the member misses out on the collective experience and discussions 
and it does place an additional burden on officer resource. The dates for the 2020 
induction sessions will be included in the 2020/21 calendar of meetings to be 
approved by Council in November 2019.  This means that political groups will 
have early notice of the dates which they can share with prospective candidates.  
It is intended that there will be two sessions in the week beginning 11 May 2020, 
one in the daytime and one in the evening. 

27. In 2018 the Council moved away from the previous arrangements for induction 
which tended to be heavily biased towards a series of presentations from the 
Chief Executive and senior managers. 

28. The focus now is on a more interactive and practical programme to provide 
essential information about the council and how it operates; facilitate introductions 
to other councillors and to senior management; provide an opportunity to 
exchange views and experiences, including issues arising from the local election; 
and to ensure all the practical arrangements such as issue of IT equipment are in 
place.  This enables Councillors to be effective in their role as early as possible. 

29. There has also been a concerted effort in recent years to ensure that the 
compulsory training modules delivered as part of the induction programme have 
been scenario based and interactive.  Member feedback suggests that this has 
been particularly effective in terms of the Licensing training.  The officers leading 
on the Code of Conduct and the Planning training modules are also seeking to 
shift the balance away from Powerpoint presentations.  

Question 7 – are the current proposals for the scheduling and format of the 
induction sessions acceptable? 

Buddying 

30. In 2018 the Committee and Member Services team introduced an informal 
“buddying” regime for the cohort of newly elected councillors whereby each 
councillor was assigned a member of the team to act as their first point of contact 
for any issues or questions about any aspect of their role as a councillor and the 
council’s services and procedures.  The frequency and format of the contact was 
a matter for each individual councillor to agree with their “buddy”.   

31. Feedback from both the councillors and the “buddys” suggested that this was a 
very useful and effective arrangement. On average the active contact tended to 
last for a few months although in most cases the buddy tends to remain the “go 
to” contact for a councillor throughout their term of office. 

Question 8 – should the informal buddying arrangements between newly elected 
councillors and members of the Committee and Member Services team 
continue? 

19



 
Legal issues 

32. There is no legal requirement for the Council to adopt a scheme for member 
training but doing so is considered good corporate governance and member 
support practice.  

 
Financial issues 

33. The majority of member training is delivered by officers of the Council in the Town 
Hall. There is a small budget for member training which has been used to pay for 
one or two external trainers per year as required to meet members’ training and 
development needs in particular areas that the Council cannot deliver (e.g. 
chairing skills training, unconscious bias). 

34. Any move away from the provision of in-house training or an increase in the 
number of specialist external training courses would result in an additional 
financial cost to the Council.  This would need to be reflected in an increased bid 
for member training in the current budget exercise for the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2020-2024. 

 
Risk 

35. There is a risk that if members undertaking regulatory functions are not equipped 
to undertake those roles then the Council’s decision making could be undermined 
and subject to an increased risk of challenge, which, if successful, could be very 
costly for the Council. Similarly if members are not trained on the Code of 
Conduct there is a risk of an increase in the number of complaints against 
members. 

Equalities 

36. All newly elected councillors are invited to declare any special requirements 
relating to the provision of training and Committee and Member Services will work 
with the individual to ensure that those needs are met.   

 

Report author Catherine Phythian 

Job title Committee and Member Services  

Service area or department Law and Governance 

Telephone  01865 252204 

e-mail  cphythian@oxford.gov.uk 

 

 

20


	Agenda
	3 Code of Conduct: summary of complaints and individual dispensations - 31 May 2019 until 30 September 2019
	4 Review of Member training in Quarter 2 2019/20
	Appendix 1 Member training Q2

	5 Member training - Agreement of principles for the 2020-24 member training scheme

